
 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

Regular Meeting of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority 
 

Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 9:00 a.m. 
Utah Transit Authority Headquarters  

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 
Golden Spike Conference Rooms   

 
 

1. Call to Order & Opening Remarks Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
2. Pledge of Allegiance Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
3. Safety First Minute Kent Muhlestein 

   

4. Public Comment Period Bob Biles 

   

5. Consent Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Approval of January 15, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes  
    
6. Agency Report Carolyn Gonot 
   
7. Resolutions  
 a. R2020-01-03 Resolution Authorizing the Filing of 

Applications with the Federal Transit Administration for 
Federal Transportation Assistance Authorized by 
Chapter 53 of Title 49 of the United States Code and 
Any Other Federal Statutes Administered by the Federal 
Transit Administration and Authorizing the Filing of 
Other Grant Applications 

Mary DeLoretto 

   
8. Contracts, Disbursements and Grants  
 a. Change Order: Meadowbrook Building 8 Paint Booth 

Construction (Bailey Builders) 
Eddy Cumins 

    
9. Discussion Items  
 a. UTA Continuous Improvement 2019 Outcomes Kim Ulibarri and  

Alisha Garrett 
    
 b. Government Relations and Legislative Priorities Update 

The board may make motions regarding UTA positions on 
legislation. 

Shule Bishop 

    

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride


 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
10. Other Business Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Next meeting: January 29, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.  
    
11. Adjourn Chair Carlton Christensen 
   

Public Comment: Members of the public are invited to provide comment during the public comment period. 
Comment may be provided in person or online through www.rideuta.com. In order to be considerate of time and 
the agenda, comments are limited to 2 minutes per individual or 5 minutes for a designated spokesperson 
representing a group. Comments may also be sent via e-mail to boardoftrustees@rideuta.com.   To be 
distributed to the Board of Trustees prior to the meeting or be included in the meeting minutes, online or email 
comments must be received by 2:00 p.m. the day before the meeting. 
Special Accommodation: Information related to this meeting is available in alternate format upon request by 
contacting calldredge@rideuta.com or (801) 287-3536. Request for accommodations should be made at least 
two business days in advance of the scheduled meeting. 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride
http://www.rideuta.com/
mailto:boardoftrustees@rideuta.com
mailto:calldredge@rideuta.com


MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD 
 
TO:  Utah Transit Authority Board of Trustees 
FROM:   Jana Ostler, Board Manager 
  
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Approval of January 15, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 
 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE: 
 

Consent 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes of the January 15, 2020 Board of Trustees meeting 
 

BACKGROUND: A regular meeting of the UTA Board of Trustees was held on Wednesday, January 15, 
2020 at 9:00 a.m. at UTA Headquarters. Minutes from the meeting document the 
actions of the Board and summarize the discussion that took place in the meeting. A 
full audio recording of the meeting is available on the Utah Public Notice Website and 
video feed is available on You Tube at https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) 2020-01-15_BOT_Minutes_unapproved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://www.utah.gov/pmn/index.html
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride


 

 

Board Members Present: 

Carlton Christensen, Chair  

Beth Holbrook 

Kent Millington 

 

Also attending were members of UTA staff, as well as interested citizens. 

 

 

Call to Order, Opening Remarks, and Pledge of Allegiance. Chair Christensen welcomed 

attendees and called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. Following Chair Christensen’s opening 

remarks, the board and meeting attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Safety First Minute. Chair Christensen yielded the floor to Sheldon Shaw, UTA Director of 

Safety & Security, for a brief safety message. 

 

Public Comment Period. No public comment was given.  

 

Consent Agenda. The consent agenda was comprised of: 

• Approval of December 18, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

A motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Agency Report. 

  

UTA UDOT AV Shuttle Pilot – Six Month Update. Carolyn Gonot, UTA Executive 

Director, was joined by Jaron Robertson, UTA Director of Innovative Mobility Solutions. 

Mr. Robertson provided an overview of progress on the autonomous vehicle (AV) 

Minutes of the Meeting 

of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

held at UTA FrontLines Headquarters located at 

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 

January 15, 2020 



 

shuttle pilot, including key metrics; successes, challenges, and opportunities; takeaways; 

and plans for a phase 2 pilot.  

 

Discussion ensued. Questions on software updates and potential phase 2 sites were 

posed by the board and answered by staff. 

 

Trustee Holbrook requested notice of dates and locations of future deployments. 

 

R2020-01-01 Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Modification Number 1 to a Federal Aid 

Grant Agreement with the Utah Department of Transportation to Provide Funding for the 

Springville Sharp/Tintic Railroad Connection Project. Mary DeLoretto, UTA Acting Chief Service 

Development Officer, provided background on the Springville Sharp/Tintic railroad connection 

and described the various funding sources identified in the grant agreement. Discussion 

ensued. Questions on UTA’s contribution were posed by the board and answered by Ms. 

DeLoretto.  

 

A motion to approve R2020-01-01 was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by Trustee 

Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously, with aye votes from Trustee Millington, Trustee 

Holbrook, and Chair Christensen. 

 

R2020-01-02 Resolution Authorizing Issuance of a Notice to Proceed Under a Construction 

Manager/General Contractor Contract for TIGER First/Last Mile Connection Program of 

Projects for 2020. Ms. DeLoretto was joined by Heather Bening, UTA Project Manager II. Ms. 

DeLoretto summarized the resolution, which authorizes phase 2 construction services 

amendments to the TIGER first/last mile connection program of projects. The amendments 

include eleven projects slated for construction in 2020. Discussion ensued. Questions on the 

overall project, total dollar amount for 2020, and strategy for communicating upgrades to local 

communities were posed by the board and answered by staff.  

 

Chair Christensen suggested posting signage at the project sites to draw attention to the 

improvements. 

 

Ms. DeLoretto committed to providing the board with an update on the TIGER first/last mile 

connection projects at a future meeting. 

 

A motion to approve R2020-01-02 was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by Trustee 

Millington. The motion carried unanimously, with aye votes from Trustee Holbrook, Trustee 

Millington, and Chair Christensen. 



 

 

Contracts, Disbursements, and Grants. 

 

Contract: GREENbike Sponsorship Agreement (GREENbike). Nichol Bourdeaux, UTA 

Chief Communications & Marketing Officer, summarized the agreement, which 

formalizes  UTA’s working relationship with GREENbike for the next five years. 

Discussion ensued. A question on sponsored site usage was posed by the board and 

answered by staff. 

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Contract: Operator Uniforms (Skaggs Companies Inc.). Eddy Cumins, UTA Chief 

Operating Officer, explained the contract, which provides operator uniforms and 

accessories. Discussion ensued. A question on the process for replacing uniforms was 

posed by the board and answered by staff.  

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by 

Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Revenue Contract: Paratransit Vehicle Lease and Service Agreement (Work Activity 

Center). Mr. Cumins described the contract, which allows the Work Activity Center to 

lease nine fully depreciated paratransit vans from UTA to provide transportation options 

to individuals with disabilities. Discussion ensued. Questions on the Work Activity 

Center locations, type of vehicles, donation or disposal of returned lease vehicles, 

maintenance needs on leased vehicles, and potential for extending performance of 

vehicles that are at the end of their useful lives were posed by the board and answered 

by staff. 

A motion to approve the revenue contract was made by Trustee Millington and 

seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Pre-Procurement. Todd Mills, UTA Sr. Supply Chain Manager, was joined by Brian 

Brooks, UTA Assistant Manager of Commuter Rail Vehicle Maintenance. Mr. Mills 

indicated the agency intends to procure the following service: 

• Warm Springs Facility Paint Booth Installation 

Discussion ensued. Questions on previous use of the paint booth, anticipated future 

usage, time required for painting vehicles, and timetable for procurement and 

installation were posed by the board and answered by staff. 



 

Service and Fare Approvals. 

Sponsored Fare Agreement for Trip Reduction Program/Free Fare Days (Division of Air 

Quality). Monica Morton, UTA Fares Director, was joined by Representative Joel Briscoe 

from the Utah House of Representatives; Mark Berger with the Division of Air Quality; 

and Andrea Packer, UTA Communications Director. Ms. Morton explained the fare 

agreement, which provides up to seven free fare days to specified riders on designated 

poor air quality days. She noted the free fare days are funded through legislation. 

Discussion ensued. Questions on Division of Air Quality forecasts and air quality 

thresholds for free fare days were posed by the board and answered by staff and guests.  

Chair Christensen invited Representative Briscoe to address the board. 

A motion to approve the sponsored fare agreement was made by Trustee Holbrook and 

seconded by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Complimentary Fare for 2020 Legislative Staff. Ms. Morton described the 

complimentary fare, which provides 50 passes to part-time legislative staff to travel to 

and from the Utah State Capitol during the 2020 legislative session. Discussion ensued. 

A question on the pass quantity was posed by the board and answered by staff. 

A motion to approve the complimentary fare was made by Trustee Millington and 

seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Complimentary Fare for Tumbleweeds Film Festival (Utah Film Center). Ms. Morton 

was joined by Ms. Packer. They detailed the complimentary fare, which provides ticket-

as-fare passes to attendees of the Tumbleweeds Film Festival. Discussion ensued. 

Questions on the festival site and dates were posed by the board and answered by staff. 

A motion to approve the complimentary fare was made by Trustee Holbrook and 

seconded by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Chair Christensen called for a break at 10:09 a.m. 

The meeting resumed at 10:18 a.m. 

Discussion Items. 

Low Income Fare Pilot Program. Ms. Morton was joined by James Yapias with Salt Lake 

City School District. Ms. Morton delivered a presentation describing the purpose and 

structure of the pilot. She then provided recommendations for key elements of the 

program. Discussion ensued. Questions on the possibility of including government 

human service agencies in the program, not limiting non-profit participation to 501(c)3 



 

organizations, impacts of pass distribution on various agency budgets, communications 

strategy for the pilot, inclusion of schools as human services organizations, and caps on 

number of pilot participants were posed by the board and answered by Ms. Morton. 

The board recommended the following parameters for the pilot: 

• Authorize a 75% discount for low income passes 

• Approve the fare products as presented, with discounts applying to regular 

service (i.e., all service except FrontRunner, express, ski, or paratransit service) 

• Acknowledge that FrontRunner service can be accommodated through the 

issuance of FAREPAY media if needed 

• Include government human service agencies 

• Include low income non-profit human service providers, typically (but not limited 

to) 501(c)3 organizations 

• Allow each participating organization to determine their own criteria for low 

income designation for pass distribution purposes 

• Implement by the end of January 2020 and continue through June 2021 

• Implement a marketing plan to promote the pilot program 

• The Executive Director will provide periodic progress updates to the Board of 

Trustees 

A motion to approve the low income fare pilot program with the identified parameters 

to begin in January 2020 and end in June 2021 was made by Trustee Millington and 

seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

UTA Long Range Plan Process. Ms. DeLoretto was joined by Alex Beim, UTA Strategic 

Planner III. Mr. Beim reported on the current state of UTA’s long range plan, as well as 

the plan objectives, development process, and timeline. Discussion ensued. Questions 

on aligning strategic plans with long range plans, how plans are used for relationship 

building with communities, and impact of UTA’s plan on local plans were posed by the 

board and answered by staff. 

Chair Christensen recommended establishing a process for bringing short term plans to 

the board for adoption and integration into the long range plan. 

Ms. Gonot suggested updating the strategic plan before the middle of 2020. 

 

Other Business.  



 

Next Meeting. The next meeting of the board will be on Wednesday, January 22, 2020 

at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Closed Session. Chair Christensen indicated there was a need for a closed session to discuss 

collective bargaining and the deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems.  A motion 

for a closed session was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The 

motion carried unanimously and the board entered closed session at 11:16 a.m. 

Open Session. A motion to return to open session was made by Trustee Holbrook and 

seconded by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously and the board returned to 

open session at 12:12 p.m. 

Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 12:13 p.m. by motion. 

 
Transcribed by Cathie Griffiths 
Executive Assistant to the Board Chair 
Utah Transit Authority 
cgriffiths@rideuta.com  
801.237.1945 
 
This document is not intended to serve as a full transcript as additional discussion may have 
taken place; please refer to the meeting materials, audio, or video located at 
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/581537.html for entire content. 
 
This document along with the digital recording constitute the official minutes of this meeting. 

mailto:cgriffiths@rideuta.com
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/581537.html


MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD 
 
TO:  Utah Transit Authority Board of Trustees 
FROM:   Carolyn Gonot, Executive Director 
PRESENTER(S): Carolyn Gonot, Executive Director 
  
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Agency Report 
 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE: 
 

Report 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational report for discussion 
 

DISCUSSION: Carolyn Gonot, UTA Executive Director will report on recent activities of the agency 
and other items of interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD 
 
TO:  Utah Transit Authority Board of Trustees 
THROUGH:  Carolyn Gonot, Executive Director 
FROM:   Mary DeLoretto, Acting Chief Service Development Officer. 
PRESENTER(S): Mary DeLoretto, Acting Chief Service Development Officer. 
  
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Resolution R2020-01-03 Authorizing the Filing of Applications with the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) for Federal Transportation Assistance Authorized by Chapter 53 
of Title 49 of the United States Code and Any Other Federal Statutes Administered by 
the Federal Transit Administration and Authorizing the Filing of Other Grant 
Applications  
 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE: 
 

Resolution 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution R2020-01-03 authorizing the filing of applications with the Federal 
Transit Administration 
 

BACKGROUND: This resolution authorizes the Executive Director to execute and file applications for 
federal assistance and Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance administered by the 
FTA, and to execute grant awards and the annual Certifications and Assurances in the 
Transit Award Management System (TrAMS).  
 

DISCUSSION: FTA requires a resolution from the governing body that the official acting on behalf of 
the agency has the authority to file an official grant application, execute awards, and 
execute Certifications and Assurances. This resolution grants that required authority to 
the Executive Director or their designee.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
 

There are no viable alternatives.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: FTA grants typically require a local match. For each grant awarded, if the local match 
isn’t already included in a project or operating budget, a budget amendment may be 
required. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) Resolution R2020-01-03 
 

 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF APPLICATIONS WITH THE 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION FOR FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION 
ASSISTANCE AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 53 of TITLE 49 OF THE UNITED 

STATES CODE AND ANY OTHER FEDERAL STATUTES ADMINISTERED BY 
THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF OTHER GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 
 
 

R2020-01-03 January 22, 2020 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a large public 
transit district organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to 
transact and exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose 
Local Government Entities-Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District 
Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration has been authorized, 

under Federal law, to provide funding to support public transportation under 49 
U.S.C. Chapter 53; and 
 

WHEREAS, other various federal, state, and local governmental agencies 
publish grant opportunities, and have been authorized to provide funding to 
support public transportation and other similar projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, grants or cooperative agreements for Federal financial 
assistance will impose certain obligations upon the Authority and may require the 
Authority to provide the non-Federal share of transportation-related expenses 
supported with Federal financial assistance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is legally authorized under Federal, state, or 
local law to apply for and receive Federal and other assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is the Designated Recipient as defined at 49 
U.S.C. § 5307(a)(2) to apply for and receive Urbanized Area Formula Program 

assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5307; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has or will provide all required certifications and 

assurances to the Federal Transit Administration; and 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to authorize its Executive Director to 
apply for Federal and other assistance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of Trustees: 
 

1. The Executive Director, or  designee is authorized to execute and file 
applications for Federal assistance on behalf of the Authority with the 
Federal Transit Administration for Federal Assistance authorized by 49 
U.S.C. Chapter 53, Title 23, United States Code, or any other Federal 
statutes authorizing a project administered by the Federal Transit 
Administration. 
   

2. The Executive Director, or designee is also authorized to execute and 
file applications for Urbanized Area Formula Program assistance as 
the designated recipient as defined by 49 U.S.C. Section 5307, either 
alone or in addition to other Federal assistance administered by the 
Federal Transit Administration. 
 

3. The Executive Director, or designee, is authorized to execute and file 
applications for assistance on behalf of the Authority with various 
federal, state, and local agencies that publicize grant opportunities for 
which the Authority would be eligible to apply. 

 
4. The Executive Director, or designee, is authorized to execute and file 

the annual certifications and assurances and other documents the 
Federal Transit Administration or other agency requires before 
awarding a Federal assistance grant or cooperative agreement. 

 
5. The Executive Director, or designee, is authorized to execute grant 

and cooperative agreements with the Federal Transit Administration on 
behalf of Authority; and such other grants as may be awarded. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 

 
 

 
6. That this Resolution supersedes Resolutions 2018-05-02, 2012-05-04 

and 2012-05-03 and shall stay in force and effect until rescinded, 
amended, or superseded by further action of the Board of Trustees. 

 
7. That the corporate seal be attached hereto. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd  day of January 2020. 

 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 

         (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 

  



 

 

MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD 
 
TO:  Utah Transit Authority Board of Trustees 
THROUGH:  Carolyn Gonot, Executive Director 
FROM:   Eddy Cumins, Chief Operating Officer 
PRESENTER(S): Eddy Cumins, Chief Operating Officer 
  
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Meadowbrook Building 8 Paint Booth Construction 
 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE: 
 

Expense Contract Change Order  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve change orders and authorize Executive Director to execute change orders with 
Bailey Builders for additional work required for paint booth installation in the amount of 
$58,681.80 for a total contract value of $229,109.80. 
 

BACKGROUND: The paint booth used to paint buses in Building 8 at Meadowbrook was constructed in 
the mid 1980’s.  To accommodate the 60’ articulated buses a new booth was needed.  
There is an approved capital project to replace the paint booth.  There are three parts to 
this project. 

1. Design contract awarded to Epic Engineering 
2. Construction/building modification contract awarded to Bailey Builders 
3. Paint booth installation contract awarded to Rocky Mountain Lifts 

 

DISCUSSION: UTA Staff is requesting approval of change orders for additional work required for paint 
booth installation in the amount of $58,681.80.  These change orders bring the total 
contract amount to $225,109.80.  During the design phase of the project Epic 
Engineering put together scope of work for the building modifications and paint booth 
installation based on a visual walk through and referencing the building plans.  Once 
demolition was underway some of the utility and building details did not match the 
building plans.  Due to the modifications in the scope of work, change orders needed to 
be submitted: 
 

• Change Order #1:  Resize door opening in the load bearing wall. $10,007 

• Change Order #2:  Credit for previous scope of work door opening. -$1,789 

• Change Order #3:  New scope of work door. $9,645 

• Change Order #4:  Rewire make up air unit. $1,401 

• Change Order #5:  Conflicting electrical.  $4,505  

• Change Order #7:  Credit for the mechanical cap no longer needed. -$1,056 
 
Once the old paint booth was removed, the 35+ years of overspray from the paint booth 
was on the floor.  The solution was to grind out the ¼” of overspray and re-epoxy the 



 

 

floor.  This was not accounted for in the original scope of work which resulted in a 
schedule delay.  The following are the change orders associated with the flooring: 

• Change Order #6:  Epoxy floor additional days.  Schedule change. 

• Change Order #8:  Epoxy flooring:  $25,569.00 

• Change Order #9:  Epoxy flooring schedule delay:  $10,400.00 (20 workdays 
@$65 per hour) 

 
 

CONTRACT 
SUMMARY: 
 

Contractor Name: Bailey Builders 
 

Contract Number: 19-03046TP 
 

Existing Contract Value: $166,428.00 

Base Contract Effective Dates: 2019-2020  Extended Contract Dates: 4/2020 

Amendment Amount: $58,682 New/Total Amount Contract Value: 
$225,110.00 

Procurement Method:  Best Value 
 

Funding Sources: Local 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
 

The overspray on the floor could be left but it would leave an uneven surface for the 
paint booth.  The booth would need to be re-leveled using shims and sealant which 
would be more expensive than the change orders above. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: The requested amount for the change orders will be paid for using capital and 
departmental funds.  No additional funding will be needed. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1) Change Order #1 - RFI 005 CMU Load Bearing Wall Response 
2) Change Order #2 – RFI 002 Change Opening at Machine Shop RESPONSE Credits 
3) Change Order #3 – RFI 002 Change Opening at Machine Shop RESPONSE Costs 
4) Change Order #4 – RFI Install Wires Back Into Old Make-Up Air Unit 
5) Change Order #5 – Conflicting Electrical 
6) Change Order #6 – Epoxy Flooring Additional Contract Days 
7) Change Order #7 – Credit for Mechanical Caps 
8) Change Order #8 – Updated Epoxy Flooring Proposal 11-27-19 w – Andrus 
9) Change Order #9 – Epoxy Flooring Schedule Delay 

 



TITLE:

PROJECT/CODE:

TO:

ATTN:

DATE:

CONTRACT No:

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP) previously executed:

It is mutually agreed upon, there is a schedule impact due to this Change order:
The amount of any adjustment to time for Substantial Completion and/or Guaranteed Completion or Contract Price includes all known and stated impacts or amounts, direct, 
indirect and consequential, (as of the date of this Change Order) which may be incurred as a result of the event or matter giving rise to this Change Order.  Should conditions 
arise subsequent to this Change Order that impact the Work under the Contract, including this Change Order, and justify a Change Order under the Contract, or should 
subsequent Change Orders impact the Work under this Change Order, UTA or the Contractor may initiate a Change Order per the General Provisions, to address such 
impacts as may arise. 

YES __X__ NO _____

YES __X__ NO _____

Current Change Order Contract Schedule

Lump Sum:

Unit Cost:

Cost Plus:

Total:

Original Contract Sum:

Net Change by Previously
Authorized Changes:

Previous Project Total:

Net Change This Change
Order:

Current Project Total:

Final Completion Date
Prior to This Change:

Contract Time Change This
Change Order (Calendar

Days):

Final Completion Date as
of This Change Order:

By:

Date:

By:

Date:

By:

Date:

By:

Date:

By:

Date:

By:

Date:

Mary DeLoretto
Acting Chief Service Dev Officer <$100,000

Kyle Stockley
Project Manager <$10,000

Grey Turner
Acting Director of Capital Projects <$50,000

Carolyn M. Gonot
Executive Director >$100,000Procurement

Jolene Higgins
Legal Review
Michael Bell

Various Scope Modifications and Contract Time Extension

SGR375 - Paint Room Bldg. 8

Kirk Bailey

12/20/2019

19-03046TP

Once demolition was underway some of the utility and building details did not match the building plans. Due to the modifications in the scope of 
work, change orders needed to be submitted: Change Order #1: Resize door opening in the load bearing wall. $10,007.30, Change Order #2: 
Credit for previous scope of work door opening. -$1,788.64,
Change Order #3: New scope of work door. $9,645.05, Change Order #4: Rewire make up air unit. $1,400.70, Change Order #5: Conflicting 
Electrical Items. $4,504.55, and Change Order #7:  Credit for the mechanical cap no longer needed. -$1,056.16
Once old paint booth was removed, the 35+ years of overspray from the paint booth was on the floor.  The solution was to grind out the ¼” of 
overspray and re-epoxy the floor.  This was not accounted for in the original scope of work which resulted in a schedule delay. The following are 
the change orders associated with the flooring: Change Order #6: Epoxy floor additional days.  Schedule change for Substantial Completion from 
12/31/2019 to 3/19/2020 and Final Completion from 1/31/2020 to 3/26/2020, Change Order #8: Epoxy flooring: $25,569.00 and Change Order #9: 
Epoxy flooring schedule delay: $10,400.00.
Total change order amount = $58,682.

$58,682

-

-

$58,682

$166,428

$58,682

$166,428

$0

$225,110

3/26/2020

55

1/31/2020

Bailey Builders

Brief scope, references to scope defining documents such as RFIs, submittals, specified drawings, exhibits, etc.

ACCEPTED:

This is a change order to

By:

Date:

Kirk Bailey
Bailey Builders

Utah Transit Authority
669 West 200 South
Salt Lake City, Utah  84101
Phone: (801) 741-8885
Fax: (801) 741-8892

CHANGE ORDER

No. 1

glarsen
Typewritten Text
N/A



 

 

June 2019 

CHANGE ORDER CHECKLIST 
Contract: Bailey Builders 19-03046TP Change Order No.: 1 
Change Order Title: Various Scope Modifications and Contract Time extension PCO No.: 1 

Summary of Change 

Once demolition was underway some of the utility and 
building details did not match the building plans. Due to the 
modifications in the scope of work, change orders needed to 
be submitted: Change Order #1: Resize door opening in the 
load bearing wall. $10,007.30, Change Order #2: Credit for 
previous scope of work door opening. -$1,788.64, 
Change Order #3: New scope of work door. $9,645.05, 
Change Order #4: Rewire make up air unit. $1,400.70, 
Change Order #5: Conflicting Electrical Items. $4,504.55, 
and Change Order #7:  Credit for the mechanical cap no 
longer needed. -$1,056.16 
Once old paint booth was removed, the 35+ years of 
overspray from the paint booth was on the floor.  The 
solution was to grind out the ¼” of overspray and re-epoxy 
the floor.  This was not accounted for in the original scope 
of work which resulted in a schedule delay. The following 
are the change orders associated with the flooring: Change 
Order #6: Epoxy floor additional days.  Schedule change for 
Substantial Completion from 12/31/2019 to 3/19/2020 and 
Final Completion from 1/31/2020 to 3/26/2020, Change 
Order #8: Epoxy flooring: $25,569.00 and Change Order 
#9: Epoxy flooring schedule delay: $10,400.00. 
Total change order amount = $58,682. 

Time Completion 

Change:  (Days/Date) 
55/3/26/2020 

UTA Cost Estimate:  $60,157 

DCM Approval Date: N/A Contractor Estimate:  $58,682 

CCC Approval Date: 12/20/2019 Change Order Value: $58,682 

Change Order Category: 
Administrative Procedure:  X 
Differing Site Condition:       
Configuration Change: X      
Safety Issue: 

Environmental Issue: 
Security Issue: 
Value Engineering: 
Utilities:     

Betterment: 
Other:             

    
Is this a Federally Funded Contract? Yes        No  X               

The change order file must contain information in sufficient detail to support an audit 
 

Y/N/NA   (If NO, Comments must be included)  

Y 1 Is there a clear description of the pertinent facts for this change?  

Y 2 

Was an independent estimate received before the contractor estimate and is 
there a clear record of negotiations including cost and price analysis 
information and deviations between the independent estimates and agreed 
upon price and is this price fair & reasonable? 

 

Y 3 Is there reference to the applicable contract section allowing the change? Exhibit C Article 7  

Y 4 Is there adequate justification for the change; i.e., added scope, changed 
conditions, betterment etc. 

 

Y 5 Was agreement reached prior to starting any work on this change?  

       N 6 
Are there third party funding participants and have their approval(s) been 
received in writing? 

 

N/A 7 Are utility and ROW agreements in place?  
N/A 8 Was the contractor informed of subsurface conditions?  

Y 9 If the change modifies a contractual milestone, is a schedule analysis 
included? 

 

N 10 Did time allow going out to bid from another contractor?  
Y 11 Is the change design complete?  



 

 

June 2019 

Y 12 Has a legal review been performed?  
Y 13 Were project contingency requirements observed?  

Y 14 Are all aspects of this change including time and price agreed upon without 
reservation by the parties involved? 

 

N 15 Were quotes from other potential contractors received?  If Yes, attach.  

Y 16 Is this change consistent with the environmental document and /or 
environmental permits? 

 

Y 17 Are labor, material, and equipment prices sufficiently detailed and are 
markups per the Contract Provisions? 

 

Y 18 Is the change allowable and applicable and qualify for federal participation? Not federally funded 
     

 

 

Signature:                                                              

            UTA Project Manager      Date 

 

 

 

Signature:        ____ ____     ____   

                      UTA Procurement & Contracts Specialist    Date  



Total to Date $

Change Order Summary Worksheet
Previously Authorized Changes

Contract 19-03046TP  BAI

Change Order
No Date Amount of CO Running Contract

Total Subject

Original
Contract $166,428

















































































 

Form DAP (April 2019)  CO Forms 
 

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP)  
(Not to exceed $200,000 without Board Approval) 

 
Contract No.    19-3046TP                   Contractor:  Bailey Builders                          

Date:    11/26/2019                                       

Project Name and Code:  Paint Booth Bldg #8 CMU Load Bearing Wall RFI005 SGR375                                                                                                    

Page __1__ of __6____    Enclosure(s):        

Potential Change Order No. _1___: 
The Contractor is authorized and directed to perform the work specified herein.  Increase or 
decrease in Contract Price and/or extension of time (if any is agreed by UTA) associated with the 
work specified herein will be covered by subsequent change order. 

 Steel is needed to be installed in place prior to the demolition of the CMU wall because it is load 

bearing wall. This DAP is for the fabrication of the steel.      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Reason for Direction or Authorization to Proceed: 
_____ This is an emergency 
__X___ The potential delay associated with preparing and executing a change order is unacceptable 

in terms of time and/or cost. 

Safety considerations and mitigation________________________________________________ 

Security considerations and mitigation                                                                                                                                                                           
Environmental considerations and mitigation _________________________________________                             
Contract Value to Date:              $166,428                                            
Not to exceed value of this DAP:     $10,007                                                                               

For UTA:            
                  Project Manager <$10,000     (Date) 

                
Director of Asset Management <$50,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Chief Operating Officer <$100,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Executive Director >$100,000        (Date) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D84B5CCE-C730-4705-86C6-33C61B17511B

11/26/2019

11/26/2019



 

Form DAP (April 2019)  CO Forms 
 

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP)  
(Not to exceed $200,000 without Board Approval) 

 
Contract No.    19-3046TP                   Contractor:  Bailey Builders                          

Date:    11/26/2019                                       

Project Name and Code:  Paint Booth Bldg #8 RFI002 and Add’l Wire Install SGR375                                                                                                    

Page __1__ of __19____    Enclosure(s):        

Potential Change Order No. _2___: 
The Contractor is authorized and directed to perform the work specified herein.  Increase or 
decrease in Contract Price and/or extension of time (if any is agreed by UTA) associated with the 
work specified herein will be covered by subsequent change order. 

 RFI002 is to change opening at machine shop. Cost is $9,645 less credit of (1,789). This also 

includes $1,401 to install wires back into old Make-Up Air Unit.     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Reason for Direction or Authorization to Proceed: 
_____ This is an emergency 
__X___ The potential delay associated with preparing and executing a change order is unacceptable 

in terms of time and/or cost. 

Safety considerations and mitigation________________________________________________ 

Security considerations and mitigation                                                                                                                                                                           
Environmental considerations and mitigation _________________________________________                             
Contract Value to Date:              $166,428                                            
Not to exceed value of this DAP:     $9,257                                                                               

For UTA:            
                  Project Manager <$10,000     (Date) 

                
Director of Asset Management <$50,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Chief Operating Officer <$100,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Executive Director >$100,000        (Date) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B0FA269-B324-4DC1-A606-6F43AF258FD6

11/27/2019

11/27/2019



 

Form DAP (April 2019)  CO Forms 
 

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP)  
(Not to exceed $200,000 without Board Approval) 

 
Contract No.    19-3046TP                   Contractor:  Bailey Builders                          

Date:    11/26/2019                                       

Project Name and Code:  Paint Booth Bldg #8 Conflicting Electrical Items SGR375                                                                                                    

Page __1__ of __6____    Enclosure(s):        

Potential Change Order No. _3___: 
The Contractor is authorized and directed to perform the work specified herein.  Increase or 
decrease in Contract Price and/or extension of time (if any is agreed by UTA) associated with the 
work specified herein will be covered by subsequent change order. 

This change order is to address conflicting electrical issues related to the 

deck removal that supports data lines.       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Reason for Direction or Authorization to Proceed: 
_____ This is an emergency 
__X___ The potential delay associated with preparing and executing a change order is unacceptable 

in terms of time and/or cost. 

Safety considerations and mitigation________________________________________________ 

Security considerations and mitigation                                                                                                                                                                           
Environmental considerations and mitigation _________________________________________                             
Contract Value to Date:              $166,428                                            
Not to exceed value of this DAP:     $4,505                                                                               

For UTA:            
                  Project Manager <$10,000     (Date) 

                
Director of Asset Management <$50,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Chief Operating Officer <$100,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Executive Director >$100,000        (Date) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 33CF23B7-BEBD-45A9-9260-E0F638B2106A

12/11/2019

12/11/2019



 

Form DAP (April 2019)  CO Forms 
 

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP)  
(Not to exceed $200,000 without Board Approval) 

 
Contract No.    19-3046TP                   Contractor:  Bailey Builders                          

Date:    11/26/2019                                       

Project Name and Code:  Paint Booth Bldg #8 Remove Floor Paint & Apply Epoxy SGR375                                                                                                    

Page __1__ of __6____    Enclosure(s):        

Potential Change Order No. _4___: 
The Contractor is authorized and directed to perform the work specified herein.  Increase or 
decrease in Contract Price and/or extension of time (if any is agreed by UTA) associated with the 
work specified herein will be covered by subsequent change order. 

This change order is to remove paint buildup on floor and apply two coats 

of epoxy to cover 4,725 SF         

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Reason for Direction or Authorization to Proceed: 
_____ This is an emergency 
__X___ The potential delay associated with preparing and executing a change order is unacceptable 

in terms of time and/or cost. 

Safety considerations and mitigation________________________________________________ 

Security considerations and mitigation                                                                                                                                                                           
Environmental considerations and mitigation _________________________________________                             
Contract Value to Date:              $166,428                                            
Not to exceed value of this DAP:     $25,824                                                                               

For UTA:            
                  Project Manager <$10,000     (Date) 

                
Director of Asset Management <$50,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Chief Operating Officer <$100,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Executive Director >$100,000        (Date) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 33CF23B7-BEBD-45A9-9260-E0F638B2106A

12/11/2019

12/11/2019



 

Form DAP (April 2019)  CO Forms 
 

Direction or Authorization to Proceed (DAP)  
(Not to exceed $200,000 without Board Approval) 

 
Contract No.    19-3046TP                   Contractor:  Bailey Builders                          

Date:    12/19/2019                                       

Project Name and Code:  Paint Booth Bldg #8 Credit for mechanical caps and epoxy 
flooring schedule delay SGR375                                                                                                    

Page __1__ of __6____    Enclosure(s):        

Potential Change Order No. _6___: 
The Contractor is authorized and directed to perform the work specified herein.  Increase or 
decrease in Contract Price and/or extension of time (if any is agreed by UTA) associated with the 
work specified herein will be covered by subsequent change order. 

This DAP is for a credit for mechanical caps and epoxy flooring schedule 

delay .                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Reason for Direction or Authorization to Proceed: 
_____ This is an emergency 
__X___ The potential delay associated with preparing and executing a change order is unacceptable 

in terms of time and/or cost. 

Safety considerations and mitigation________________________________________________ 

Security considerations and mitigation                                                                                                                                                                           
Environmental considerations and mitigation _________________________________________                             
Contract Value to Date:              $166,428                                            
Not to exceed value of this DAP:     $9,344                                                                               

For UTA:            
                  Project Manager <$10,000     (Date) 

                
Director of Asset Management <$50,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Chief Operating Officer <$100,000   (Date) 

N/A                
Executive Director >$100,000        (Date) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E7869074-C022-46B3-BBB8-426DC1F63857

12/23/2019

12/19/2019



 

 

MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD 
 
TO:  Utah Transit Authority Board of Trustees 
THROUGH:  Carolyn Gonot, Executive Director 
FROM:   Kim Ulibarri, Chief People Officer 
PRESENTER(S): Alisha Garrett, Sr Mgr Culture & Talent Development 
  
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Continuous Improvement 2019 Outcomes 
 

AGENDA ITEM TYPE: 
 

Discussion 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational report for discussion 
 

BACKGROUND: In 2016, UTA created a Continuous Improvement (CI) department.  The purpose of this 
department is to foster learning and lead CI improvement efforts across the agency to 
improve efficiency and effectiveness.  In order to support the mission and vision the 
department created a cross-functional UTA Continuous Improvement team, made up of 
various members from across the agency which continues to grow each year.  The 
purpose of this team is to create experts within Service Units and Agency Offices to 
ensure the work of CI becomes core to UTA’s approach and reinforces the UTA Way.  
2019 was a great year where several team members successfully accomplished their 
certification program and helped to lead out and complete numerous continuous 
improvement efforts across the agency.  
 

DISCUSSION: Review the overall objective of the CI Team, the structure and the requirements for 
certification.  Will also highlight some of the successes of team members in 2019. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

None 
 
 
 

 


	2020-01-22_BOT_Agenda
	Approval of Minutes_2020-01-15_Board Memo
	Agency Report_Board Memo
	Resolution_R2020-01-03 Authorizing Grant Execution_Board Memo
	Change Order_Building 8 Paint Booth_Board Memo
	Discussion_CI Team Update_Board Memo



